
CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD 1 
TOWN HALL 2 

MINUTES OF MEETING 3 
DECEMBER 10, 2012 4 

 5 
APPROVED 6 

 7 
 8 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Charles Russell, Chair; John Owen, Ed Stone,  9 
Winslow Ladue, Dennis Delaney.  10 
ADMINISTRATION: Dean Bloch, Selectboard Assistant. 11 
OTHERS:  Ed Sulva, Bonnie Batchelder, Patty Ristau, Peter Trono, Mike Cook, David 12 
McNally, John Snow, Meg Modley, David Stewart, Chris Davis, Dick St George, Ellie 13 
Russell, Moe Harvey, Mary Mead, Stephen Brooks, David Mack, David Miskell, Deb 14 
Stone, Bruce Bushey, JoAnn Cummings, Robert Mack, Chris Mack, Nancy Wood, Kate 15 
Lampton, Walter Gates, Sue Smith, Jane Lawlis, Bonnie Christie, Kim Ziegelman, 16 
Margaret Woodruff, John Hammer, Charlotte News; Carol Casey, Charlotte Citizen, and 17 
others. 18 
 19 
CALL TO ORDER 20 
Mr. Russell called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 21 
 22 
ADJUSTMENTS TO AGENDA 23 
None. 24 
 25 
CVFRS 5-YEAR PATIENT BILLING AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FORENSIC 26 
ANALYSIS – action item 27 
Ms. Batchelder and Ms. Ristau, Batchelder and Associates, reviewed a draft 5-year 28 
patient billing and accounts payable forensic report regarding the Charlotte Volunteer 29 
Fire and Rescue departments. Ms. Batchelder explained a process that tracked patient 30 
billing records between Charlotte Rescue and Newport Ambulance, Quickbooks deposits 31 
and bank records including third party insurance carrier checks. There was $9,000 that 32 
could not be traced. All patient billing information was compared to total bank deposits 33 
and we were satisfied, said Ms. Batchelder.  34 
 35 
Mr. Russell noted that an e-mail from Mr. Sulva had been received with 36 
comments/questions. Mr. Sulva, CVFRS representative, said that for the last six months 37 
the Charlotte Rescue, Mary Mead and Batchelder auditors have worked with Newport 38 
Ambulance to get all the information required for the audit. All records of all the runs 39 
that Charlotte Rescue responded to have been provided to Batchelder, and Batchelder 40 
attempted to trace every single run. The audit report conclusion states that most 41 
everything was traced and accounted for. The Rescue records were poorly kept and 42 
controls could have been better, said Mr. Sulva. 43 
 44 
Ms. Mead, Town Treasurer, Ms Machavern, Town Auditor, and Mr. Sulva asked for 45 
clarification on several points of the draft. 46 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    12/10/2012 PAGE 2 

 47 
Ms. Machavern asked that the auditors add an Executive Summary in layman’s terms to 48 
the report. The document should stay as it currently was, with changes: 49 

• Page 2, #1 procedure - give each procedure a title stating that it was a procedure. 50 
• Procedure #3 - has multiple steps and was confusing. There should be a note to let 51 

the reader know to go to page 6 to connect the steps.  52 
• Procedure #3, regarding patient billing - the Town has up to three years to re-53 

submit bills that had not been sent out. 54 
• Page 8, total amount of funds - $24,434 was an amount due to the Town and 55 

referred to funds received for patient billing. A check should have been issued out 56 
of the Fire and Rescue account. Delayed payments should be further discussed 57 
between rescue and the auditors. 58 

• Unaccounted for subscriptions, procedure #10 - was no lone an on-going 59 
program.  60 

• Newport Ambulance reporting to the CVFRS leaves a lot to be desired. Fire and 61 
Rescue needs to be more educated regarding reports and understanding them. 62 

 63 
Mr. Russell noted that Procedure #5 was modified so that totals matched. Not all calls 64 
were billed, said Mr. Russell. Mr. Sulva said that for the last five years runs were not 65 
billed to insurance companies. Rescue does have all the paperwork for those. It could not 66 
be determined if the runs were not faxed to Newport, or if Newport dropped the ball. In 67 
2012, there were 24 intercepts that he felt should be in a different spot, said Mr. Sulva. 68 
Ms. Ristau pointed out that intercepts were billed after the fact starting in March 2012. 69 
 70 
Mr. Sulva said that a final report was needed. Did the CVFRS need to report full patient 71 
billing in a gross amount was a question, said Mr. Sulva. Mr. Russell said that one 72 
recommendation was to look at what was billed and what was paid monthly. Ms. 73 
Machavern suggested that Rescue record each call made to Newport and match that with 74 
what was received. 75 
 76 
Ms. Batchelder said she would try to modify the draft report language in an Executive 77 
Summary in a bulleted format – what was found as calls, what was found from Newport. 78 
The formal audit language in the report could not be changed, clarified Ms. Batchelder. 79 
 80 
Mr. Sulva summarized that the draft audit says that CVFRS was not able to find all of its 81 
records and there were no inappropriate payments to vendors. Ms. Batchelder replied 82 
correct. 83 
 84 
Mr. Sulva said that a reason for the audit was to determine if there were any fraudulent 85 
activities. Was there any identified throughout the audit for patient billing, accounts 86 
payable or operating. Ms. Batchelder replied no, none.   87 
 88 
Mr. Sulva thanked past Fire and Rescue bookkeepers for their hard work. 89 
 90 
Mr. Russell opened the floor for public comment. 91 
 92 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    12/10/2012 PAGE 3 

Mr. Snow said that the report was providing a dollar figure for unbilled patient services. 93 
He suggested using actual collected value of patient calls for value of lost revenue. It was 94 
understood that gross billing and net receipts varied. The auditor should provide both 95 
figures on actuals versus hypothetical averaged amounts, said Mr. Snow. Ms. Batchelder 96 
replied that the best that could be done was to take an average.  97 
 98 
Mr. Sulva suggested a change of wording to “…30 runs a year were unaccounted for.” 99 
 100 
NEXT STEPS: 101 

• Create a final draft report. 102 
• Add an Executive Summary in laymen’s language. 103 
• Schedule a meeting to review the final draft report. 104 

 105 
CVFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 – action 106 
item 107 
Ms. Batchelder reviewed that the auditors looked at vendors, cancelled checks, and 108 
invoices. Vendors were verified as valid vendors. Recommendations were noted to 109 
address internal control processes for the Fire and Rescue to look at. She wouldn’t expect 110 
Fire and Rescue to do ‘hospital’ accounting, said Ms. Batchelder. 111 
 112 
Mr. Sulva said that there were no issues with the draft. The numbers were reasonable. He 113 
asked to see numbers so they could be inputted into the Quickbooks accounting system. 114 
The auditor’s recommendations were fair, said Mr. Sulva. 115 
 116 
Mr. Russell noted that some of the equipment, such as ambulances, were owned by the 117 
Town. The 1991 ambulance was owned by the Fire and Rescue, said Mr. Russell. 118 
 119 
Mr. Owen suggested foot noting Miscellaneous Income.  120 
 121 
Ms. Mead asked if Note 9 was a Town funded expense, or the Corporation. Ms. 122 
Batchelder said that Fire and Rescue asked for it to be presented this way. 123 
 124 
Ms. Mead said that Kay Gault’s salary needed to come out of the Fire and Rescue budget.  125 
 126 
Ms. Mead asked if patient billing was taken out would that be a true representation of the 127 
Fire and Rescue budget. Ms. Batchelder replied yes. The 8 percent fee should be added 128 
back in, said Ms. Batchelder. 129 
 130 
Mr. Russell asked Ms. Batchelder to update the draft and return with it by next week for 131 
another meeting. 132 
 133 
The Selectboard thanked the Fire and Rescue representatives for their cooperation. 134 
 135 
MINUTES 136 
MOTION by Mr. Ladue, seconded by Mr. Owen, to approve the Selectboard 137 
minutes of November 26, 2012, as written. 138 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    12/10/2012 PAGE 4 

VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried. 139 
 140 
PUBLIC COMMENT 141 
Mr. Rosenthal, Holmes Road resident, explained that the dirt road was a short 1,030’ 142 
long. A 35 mph speed limit sign was posted recently. It served no purpose. Mr. Rosenthal 143 
asked that the sign be removed. 144 
 145 
Mr. Russell suggested that staff add the road sign issue to a future agenda. 146 
 147 
Mr. Brooks, resident, asked if there was a further plan to open up the Route 7 view 148 
corridor. Mr. Owen said that he was in that area yesterday. More trees have been cut, said 149 
Mr. Owen. 150 
 151 
Mr. Ladue suggested that poster boards with past and current photographs of the views be 152 
shown at March Town Meeting for discussion. If the Town agreed to opening up the 153 
corridor further, they could vote to approve funds for a view analysis at a subsequent 154 
Town Meeting. Or, the Selectboard could revisit the area to be cut, which was discussed 155 
following a recent site visit. Mr. Ladue asked Ms. Smith if cutting on the lower hill could 156 
be done. Ms. Smith replied that the Park Oversight Committee has planned to do more 157 
clearing every year as funds became available. 158 
 159 
2ND PUBLIC HEARING TO READOPT THE CURRENT TOWN PLAN – action 160 
item 161 
Mr. Russell noted that the current Town Plan would be readopted without any changes. 162 
 163 
Mr. Brooks pointed out that the Town Plan included language regarding burying utility 164 
lines. Mr. Brooks expressed concern that the Town Plan language did not follow actual 165 
practice, which devalued the document. 166 
 167 
Mr. Russell said that the Town Plan language would be revisited as it was re-drafted over 168 
the next year. 169 
 170 
MOTION by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Owen, to submit the current Town Plan 171 
for re-adoption to the voters via an article at the March Town Meeting 2013. 172 
VOTE: 5ayes; motion carried. 173 
 174 
BRIDGES 14, 30 AND 31 – REVIEW OF COST PROPOSALS IN RESPONSE TO 175 
RFP – action item 176 
Mr. Bloch reviewed bids from Stantac, Dubois and King, and VHB. The Stantac bid was 177 
the lowest at $16,919 for the scoping phase. The firm would submit a bid for the design 178 
phase later, explained Mr. Bloch. 179 
 180 
MOTION by Mr. Ladue, seconded by Mr. Owen, to select Stantac Contractors as 181 
the preferred engineering firm providing services for scoping rehabilitation/re-182 
construction of Bridges 14, 30 and 31 for a projected price not to exceed $16,919; 183 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    12/10/2012 PAGE 5 

and that a contract be developed for engineering as a next step in pricing those 184 
services. 185 
DISCUSSION: 186 
Mr. Brooks asked that the Selectboard ask the firm if the work could be done for a 187 
better price before awarding the bid. Mr. Stone pointed out that it was a competitive 188 
bid. It may already be the lowest price, suggested Mr. Stone. Mr. Owen expressed 189 
concern that if this was done for this contract, then the Selectboard would have to 190 
do it on every contract. 191 
 192 
Mr. Russell asked staff to contact Stantac regarding a best and lowest price. 193 
 194 
Mr. Mack asked if the Town was considering a covered bridge. Mr. Bloch explained 195 
that the scope of work was a question of width and if some type of structure on top 196 
could be added later. The firm would listen to what the Town wants, said Mr. Bloch. 197 
VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried. 198 
 199 
BUDGET REVIEW 200 
Town Clerk 201 
Ms. Mead reviewed a written draft Town budget, and noted that the $725,318 amount for 202 
Thompson’s Point was a best guess. The tax rate was variable, said Ms. Mead.  203 
 204 
The Selectboard thanked Ms. Mead. 205 
 206 
Ms. Balaban asked if water testing was done regularly at the Town Hall. Mr. Russell said 207 
that it was included in the Town Hall Maintenance line item. We need to find out if there 208 
was a yearly cost for the filtering system, said Mr. Russell. 209 
 210 
Library 211 
Ms. Christie, Library Board of Trustees Chair, Mr. Crockenberg, Library Board of 212 
Trustees member, and Ms. Woodruff, Librarian, reviewed proposed FY 2013-2014 213 
Library budget increases, and focus points that tied into the Library Strategic Plan. 214 
 215 
There was discussion of a proposed 10 percent increase for staff hours and staff duties, 216 
technology software subscriptions, and Vermont on-line library access. There was a 217 
question if the Library could utilize the Town Hall web software to upgrade its website. 218 
 219 
The Selectboard thanked the Library Board of Trustees and Librarian. 220 
 221 
Senior Center 222 
Mr. Gates reviewed a proposed 1 ½ percent increase in FY2014. There would be no 223 
structural changes to the center other than a new parking lot lighting proposed for a 224 
budgeted $15,000 starting in July. 225 
 226 
The Selectboard thanked Mr. Gates. 227 
 228 
Charlotte Land Trust including Conservation Fund 229 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    12/10/2012 PAGE 6 

Ms. Lampton and Ms. Lawlis, Charlotte Land Trust members, reviewed a proposed 230 
Charlotte Land Trust request of $7,500.  231 
 232 
Ms. Lampton reviewed a Conservation Fund Project List for an estimated total of 233 
$800,000. The Land Trust was seeking a Conservation fund amount of $156,000 at $0.02 234 
on the tax rate, or $140,000 for $0.015 on the tax rate. 235 
 236 
The Selectboard thanked Ms. Lampton and Ms. Lawlis for their report. 237 
 238 
Conservation Commission 239 
Mr. Hyams, Conservation Commission member, reviewed a proposed FY 2013-2014 240 
budget for a wetlands stewardship line item. 241 
 242 
Mr. Stone asked if the commission was funding $5,900 to the Lewis Creek Association. 243 
Mr. Hyams replied no.  244 
 245 
Mr. Hyams explained a Frogbit infestation in Town Farm Bay, which was a Town natural 246 
resource. The commission would take a larger role in the project that would include water 247 
quality testing/sampling. 248 
 249 
Following a brief discussion regarding how to report the budget, the Selectboard spoke in 250 
favor of a budget as a single line item. 251 
 252 
The Selectboard than Mr. Hyams for his report. 253 
 254 
Planning and Zoning  255 
Mr. Bloch reviewed a Town records and documents scanning project. Funding was 256 
required to digitalize the records, said Mr. Bloch. 257 
 258 
Mr. Ladue noted that the State of Vermont was going through the same archiving issue. 259 
 260 
Ms. Balaban noted that the League of Cities and Towns has been developing policies 261 
regarding electronically archived documents. 262 
 263 
Mr. Russell said that a quote was needed regarding expenses to digitalize the Town 264 
records. 265 
 266 
The Selectboard thanked Mr. Bloch for his report. 267 
 268 
Selectboard – including land maintenance 269 
A discussion regarding a proposed Selectboard budget was deferred until the next 270 
Selectboard meeting. 271 
 272 
RECREATION COMMISSION – REQUEST TO USE $1,400 FROM THE 273 
RECREATION RESERVE FUND TO IMPROVE THE SURFACE OF THE 274 
HOCKEY RINK – action item 275 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    12/10/2012 PAGE 7 

MOTION by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Ladue, to approve a request by the 276 
Recreation Commission to use $1,400 from the Recreation Reserve Fund to improve 277 
the surface of the Hockey Rink. 278 
VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried. 279 
 280 
EMPLOYEES’ HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN FOR 2013 – action item 281 
Mr. Bloch reviewed the current Vermont Association of Chamber Executives BC/BS 282 
employees’ health insurance plan, the Town’s contribution of 90 percent for full time 283 
employees, and 50 percent for part time employees.  284 
 285 
Mr. Bloch explained an issue regarding a part time employee who had a high health care 286 
year. The deductible cost went to $12,000. The employee paid out of pocket for the 287 
deductible of $6,000 on the family plan. The fifty percent deductible for the family plan 288 
is $6,000 so that is what their cost is. The 50 percent of the deductible is the employee’s 289 
concern, said Mr. Bloch.  290 
 291 
Mr. Russell said that a part time employee was defined as working 20-30 hours per week, 292 
and eligible for health insurance. Employees working less than 20 hours per week were 293 
not eligible for insurance. This could be the time to do something different for part time 294 
people, said Mr. Russell. 295 
 296 
MOTION by Mr. Owen, seconded by Mr. Stone, to continue with the current 297 
BC/BS Vermont plan with a Town contribution of 90 percent for full-time 298 
employees and 50 percent for part-time employees. 299 
VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried. 300 
 301 
THOMPSON’S POINT LOTS 34 & 35 AT 211 ASSOCIATION WAY – action item 302 
MOTION by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Owen, to terminate a lease to Stephen 303 
Hall and Stella Hall, and approve a 20-year lease to Osarhehon Partners, LLC for 304 
Thompson’s Point Lots 34 & 35 at 211 Association Way, with a condition that the 305 
bank closing was completed. 306 
VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried. 307 
 308 
REPLACE CARPET IN THE TOWN HALL – action item 309 
Ms. Balaban, Assistant Town Clerk, reviewed that she had researched replacement carpet 310 
prices and firms two years ago. 311 
 312 
MOTION by Mr. Stone, to approve an expenditure of $20,000 from the Repair and 313 
Maintenance Reserve fund. 314 
DISCUSSION: 315 
Ms. Balaban reiterated that the prices were from two years ago. She had contacted 316 
two companies. One bid was received from Elegant Carpet for $17,000. She halted 317 
the process as it sounded like the Selectboard couldn’t decide on a budget. There 318 
were other issues that needed to be addressed before a carpet could be laid, said Ms. 319 
Balaban. 320 
 321 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    12/10/2012 PAGE 8 

Mr. Harvey noted that there issues to the Town hall that would require repairs and 322 
painting. That should be done first and then the carpet replaced, suggested Mr. 323 
Harvey. Ms. Balaban said that painting could not be done until the windows were 324 
done. 325 
 326 
Mr. Stone withdrew his motion. 327 
 328 
REPLACE SIX WINDOWS IN THE TOWN HALL AND MAKED ASSOCIATED 329 
REPAIRS – action item 330 
MOTION by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Owen, to approve $10,000 from the 331 
Repair and Maintenance Reserve Fund to replace windows in the Town Hall and 332 
make associated repairs. 333 
DISCUSSION: 334 
Mr. Ladue asked if approval should wait until bids were received. He was 335 
concerned that work would be done during January and February when it was cold, 336 
said Mr. Ladue. 337 
 338 
Mr. Stone and Mr. Owen withdrew the motion. 339 
 340 
SELECTBOARD UPDATES 341 
Mr. Russell asked for input regarding a letter of thanks to Chris Davis. 342 
 343 
Mr. Stone reported on the Town Volunteer Christmas Party. People were fine that no 344 
wine was served this year, said Mr. Stone. 345 
 346 
APPROVE WARRANTS TO PAY BILLS 347 
The Selectboard members signed bills and warrants. 348 
 349 
ADJOURNMENT 350 
MOTION by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Owen, to adjourn the meeting. 351 
VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried. 352 
 353 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 354 
 355 
Respectfully submitted, Kathlyn Furr, Recording Secretary 356 
 357 
 358 
 359 
 360 
  361 
 362 


